HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION OF MONTGOMERY COUNTY 10400 Detrick Avenue Kensington, Maryland 20895 (240) 627-9425

Budget, Finance and Audit Committee Minutes

December 15, 2020

For the official record of the Housing Opportunities Commission of Montgomery County, an open meeting of the Budget, Finance and Audit Committee was conducted via an online platform and teleconference on Tuesday, December 15, 2020, with moderator functions occurring at 10400 Detrick Avenue, Kensington, Maryland beginning at 10:03 a.m. Those in attendance were:

Present

Richard Y. Nelson, Jr., Chair – Budget, Finance and Audit Committee Roy Priest - Commissioner Frances Kelleher – Commissioner

Guest

Jeffrey Merkowitz - Commissioner

Also Attending

Stacy Spann, Executive Director
Aisha Memon, General Counsel
Cornelia Kent, Chief Financial Officer
Olutomi Adebo
Eugenia Pascual
Claudia Wilson
Nicolas Deandreis
Nilou Razeghi
Kayrine Brown, Deputy Executive Director
Cornelia Kent, Chief Financial Officer
Olutomi Adebo
Francisco Vega
Kristyn Greco
Jay Berkowitz

Patrice Birdsong, Spec. Asst. to Commission

Commissioner Nelson opened the meeting of the Budget, Finance and Audit Committee with an introduction of the Commissioners who participate on the Committee, Richard Y. Nelson, Jr., Chair, Roy Priest, and Frances Kelleher. Commissioner Merkowitz joined the meeting as a guest.

DISCUSSION ITEMS

1. Discussion of First Quarter Fiscal Year 2021 Budget to Actual Statement

Cornelia Kent, Chief Financial Officer, introduced Olutomi Adebo, Assistant Budget Officer, who provided the presentation. Ms. Adebo gave a brief update on the impact of COVID-19 on HOC's income statements. Informing that the positive income variance in many properties may be partially off-set by bad debt. At the time the FY'21 Budget was developed property incomes were reduced in an attempt to project the impact of COVID-19 on rent collection. True impact on the income statements will not be reflected until it is 90-days in arrearage to allow for bad debt.

Commissioner Nelson ask if it were possible to give indication of those that are potentially subject to 90-days to get a picture of the Agency. Ms. Kent informed that everything that is receivable is subject to the 90-days, and that there has been a large increase in receivables as well as increase in allowance.

Commissioner Nelson also asked if there was a normal prior to COVID-19. Ms. Kent replied that it was closer to \$1 million and it is much higher, now closer to \$5 million. Both Commissioners Nelson and Kelleher commented that this was distressing but helpful in seeing where the Agency is verses what the numbers are showing. Ms. Kent informed that it is important to note that an expense is being set aside for after 90-days for bad debt and allowances which will reduce the net income.

Ms. Adebo provided a report on Budget to Actual Statements for the Agency through the first quarter of FY'21 consisting of an overall summary and additional detail on the Opportunity Housing properties, the Development Corporation properties, the Public Housing and Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Programs and all Capital Improvements Budgets.

Commissioner Merkowitz wanted to know if the losses were budgeted for, and if so, is it to be recognized in the next quarter, or as losses that were expected during the quarter that did not materialize.

Ms. Kent explained that rents were reduced during the first quarter to take into consideration the loss. Finance would present a reforecast to the BF&A Committee in late January to take into account the effects of COVID 19 on rental income for the entire FY.

Mr. Spann also explained that it was acknowledged that another adjustment would be made for the FY.

Commissioner Kelleher commented that it was so many moving parts it was not clear as to what would take place. She also wanted to inform listeners that the Agency operates on a fiscal level that begins July – September and the numbers reported are not calendar year.

2. Un-audited Financial Statements for the First Quarter Ended September 30, 2020

Cornelia Kent, Chief Financial Officer, introduced Francisco Vega, Assistant Controller, who provided the presentation. Mr. Vega provided the financial highlights and the overall Agency Net Incomes.

Commissioner Merkowitz inquired if there was a targeted ratio. Mr. Spann explained that the Agency imposes its ratio goals and that most Housing Authorities do not think to do this. Having a sense of liquidity is important based on discussion previously had on rent collections.

Commissioner Kelleher commented that the HAP assistance timing of receipt was the main driver of the offset of the operating expenses.

3. Discussion of Fiscal Year 2021 First Quarter Budget Amendment

Cornelia Kent, Chief Financial Officer, introduced Terri Fowler, Budget Officer, who provided the presentation

Ms. Fowler reported that the Fiscal Year 2021 First Quarter Budget Amendment included some proforma items that are typically done in the First Quarter Budget Amendment as well as changes due to the property extensions in the Opportunity Housing Fund and the renewal of the Fatherhood Grant. Within the General Fund, fees from the Multifamily and Single Family Bonds had a savings in moneys drawn in Fiscal Year 2020. These draws will cover Administrative Expenses in Fiscal Year 2021.

Ms. Fowler also reported that the Opportunity Housing Fund rate is being adjusted and the unrestricted cash could go to the Agency.

It was reported that Georgian Court and Stewartown are to be re-syndicated to tax credit. The daycare at 9845 Lost Knife Road will create non-dwelling income. The Public Fund – Fatherhood Grant was renewed for one year at a rate higher than the previous grant. There will be capital roll over for Opportunity Housing. Georgian Court and Stewartown were budgeted for property extensions to account for minor renovation.

Ms. Fowler reported that this all projected to a budget surplus.

4. Discussion of Calendar Year 2020 Third Quarter Budget Amendment

Budget, Finance and Audit Committee Minutes – December 15, 2020 Page 4

Cornelia Kent, Chief Financial Officer, introduced Terri Fowler, Budget Officer, who provided the presentation

Ms. Fowler reported that when the Fiscal Year 2021 Budget was adopted it was anticipated that the Bauer Park Apartment would close in the month of June. The conversion to a tax credit did not take place until the end of September 2020 therefore the budget amendment is being done for calendar year 2020 to account for budget beginning October – December 2020. The property is restricted and there is a small capital budget to account for any work not being done in the renovation budget

5. Write-off of Uncollectible Tenant Accounts Receivable (July 1, 2020 – September 30, 2020)

Cornelia Kent, Chief Financial Officer, introduced Nilou Razeghi, Accounting Manager, who provided a presentation on uncollectible tenant accounts write-off.

Ms. Razeghi reported that the Agency's current policy is to provide an allowance for bad debt on tenants' receivable that have been outstanding for over 90-days on a quarterly basis. The staff also recommends to the Commission the write-off of uncollected receivables from past tenants. The primary reason for write-offs are from tenants who skip, voluntarily left their units, death, purchase a home, transfer due to medical reasons or to enter into another program, and non-compliance of program requirements.

Commissioner Nelson commented that there has been issues with VPC I, VPC II, Scattered Sites and MHLP and wanted to know the type of properties and why they are not performing successfully. Ms. Kent explained that they are Scattered Sites (VPC I & VPC II are former public housing; Scattered Sites I & II are former tax credit scattered sites). Not sure why they are not performing but will provide follow-up.

Commissioner Priest commented that purchasing a home was a good thing and wanted to know why it was included as a write-off. It was explained that the tenant skipped out.

At the request of Commissioner Merkowitz staff will provide report on 30-60 day write-offs.

6. Discussion on Extending the use of the PNC Bank Line of Credit to Finance Commission Approved Actions related to Wheaton Gateway

Budget, Finance and Audit Committee Minutes – December 15, 2020 Page 5

Cornelia Kent, Chief Financial Officer, introduced Eugenia Pascual, Controller, provided a presentation on extending the use of the PNC Bank Line of Credit to finance Commission approved action related to Wheaton Gateway.

Ms. Pascual requested the Budget, Finance and Audit Committee's approval to recommend to the full Commission authorization to extend the use of the Line of Credit (LOC) to Wheaton Gateway, LLC. She explained that the Commission approved in January 2019 a taxable draw from the PNC Bank Line of Credit to fund the acquisition and other cost related to the Lindsey Ford site. HOC has partnered with Duffie Company to develop the Westside, the Veirs Mill side, under the Gateway concept known as Wheaton Gateway, LLC.

At the recommendation of Commissioner Nelson staff will amend the requested date to September 2022.

7. Renewal of the Property Management Contract at Tanglewood Cluster

Cornelia Kent, Chief Financial Officer, introduced Jay Berkowitz, Asset Manager, who provided a presentation on the renewal of the Property Management Contract at Tanglewood Cluster.

Mr. Berkowitz reported that the Property Management Contract with Tanglewood and Sligo Limited Partnership, 527 Dale Drive, Southbridge Apartments and Manchester Manor is expiring March 31, 2021. The contract provides for three (3) one-year renewals. Per the Commission's procurement policy, the Commission must approve all property management contract renewals. Staff is requesting that the contract be renewed for one year with Residential One Management.

Commissioner Kelleher asked about REAC scores for Southbridge and Dale Drive. Mr. Berkowitz informed that there are no REAC scores for these two properties.

A motion was made by Commissioner Priest and seconded by Commissioner Kelleher to recommend to the full Commission the support of the Budget, Finance and Audit Committee's recommendation of items 1, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7 for approval at the January 13, 2021 monthly Commission meeting. Affirmative votes were cast by Commissioners Nelson, Priest and Kelleher.

Budget, Finance and Audit Committee Minutes – December 15, 2020 Page 6

Commissioner Nelson expressed his appreciation to the staff and wished all a happy holiday.

The meeting adjourned at 11:13 a.m. Next scheduled meeting is January 29, 2021.

Respectfully submitted,

Stacy L. Spann Secretary-Treasurer

/pmb

Approved: January 29, 2021